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1 	This settlement agreement (Agreement) is entered into by both parties to this proceeding for the purpose of resolving all issues raised in the above docket.
PARTIES

2 	The parties to this Agreement are Kush Tourism LLC (“Kush Tourism” or “Company”), and the Staff of the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (Staff) (collectively, “the Parties”).
RECITALS

3 	Kush Tourism is a limited liability corporation that holds charter and excursion carrier authority from the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (Commission) under Certificate No. Ch-65467. The Commission regulates charter party and excursion carriers under chapter 81.70 RCW. Pursuant to RCW 81.70.020, “motor vehicle” is defined as “every self-propelled vehicle with seating capacity for seven or more persons, excluding the driver.”
4 	The Commission issued charter and excursion carrier authority to Kush Tourism in July 2014 in Docket TE-141322. Kush Tourism is located in Seattle and provides charter party service in the Puget Sound region in one Chevrolet van that seats eight—a driver and seven other passengers. For the year ending December 31, 2015, Kush Tourism’s gross revenues (regulated and unregulated) totaled $269,000.
5 [bookmark: _GoBack]	At the new entrant visit with Kush Tourism, in July 2014, Commission motor carrier safety staff (Staff) went over safety and other regulations with the Company. At this meeting, Staff provided Kush Tourism with informational materials, including “Your Guide to Achieving a Satisfactory Safety Record” (Safety Guide) which is a bound, soft-cover publication produced by the Commission, last updated March 2014.
6 	Staff scheduled Kush Tourism’s first compliance review for March 15, 2016. Among other records, Staff examined driver qualification files for drivers used within the past 12 months and hours of service records from the previous six months. Staff identified violations of motor carrier safety rules associated with these records, violations that are considered to be “critical.” Specifically, Staff found that Kush Tourism had used drivers that were not medically examined and certified, in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 391.45(a) (“medical certification violations”), and failing to require drivers to make a record of duty status, a violation of 49 C.F.R. § 395.8(a) (“hours of service violations”). The medical certification violations occurred between October 19, 2015, and March 12, 2016. The hours of service violations occurred primarily in the fall of 2015. Staff proposed a safety rating of “conditional” for Kush Tourism.
7 	Kush Tourism engaged a consultant to review its compliance with applicable laws and rules and took swift steps to correct its business practices. The Company provided Staff with a safety management plan. Based on the safety management plan as well as on the Company’s actions and its full cooperation with Staff in addressing the violations, Staff is satisfied that Kush Tourism has revised its business practices to correct the violations documented in the compliance review.
8 	The Commission assessed a penalty of $4,500 against Kush Tourism on June 3, 2016, for forty-four violations of 49 C.F.R. § 391.45(a), which requires a driver to be medically examined and certified prior to driving, and one violation of 49 C.F.R. § 395.8(a), which requires a driver to make a record of duty status. Violations of both of these rules are “critical” safety violations.
9 	On June 10, 2016, Kush Tourism timely filed an application for mitigation of the penalty and a request for hearing. The Company admitted to the violations but requested mitigation based on “confusing regulations regarding vehicles under 8 passengers and 10,001 GVWR,” which led Kush Tourism to believe “that our drivers did not need medical certification.”
10 	Kush Tourism points to language in the Safety Guide as well as in the standard compliance review appointment letter it received as sources of confusion regarding whether certain rules applied to the operation of the Kush Tourism van. The Safety Guide states that vehicles operating as charter carriers are excepted from the general definitions of a commercial motor vehicle, which is defined in the Safety Guide as “a vehicle that is designed or used to transport more than 8 passengers, including the driver.” The appointment letter states that a company should have available for inspection, among other items, “driver qualification files for all drivers used in the past 12 months, including copies of medical certificates on drivers operating commercial motor vehicles with GVWR of 10,001 pounds or more or more than 8 passengers.” Kush Tourism believed that operating its van, which transports a total of eight people, including a driver and seven other passengers, did not subject the Company to all of the motor vehicle safety requirements. Staff has since changed the language at issue in its standard appointment letter to refer to “8 or more occupants” and plans to clarify the language in the printed Safety Guide, as well, the next time it is updated.
11 	The Parties concluded negotiations and reached an agreement in principle. On July 6th, 2016, the parties informed the Commission of their settlement. The settlement is memorialized in this Agreement.
AGREEMENT

12 	The Parties have reached agreement on the issues raised in the above docket and present their agreement for the Commission’s consideration and approval. The Parties therefore adopt the following Agreement, which the Parties enter into voluntarily, to resolve the matters in dispute between them and to expedite the orderly disposition of this proceeding.
13 	The Parties agree that Kush Tourism will pay to the Commission penalties of $2,100.
GENERAL PROVISIONS

14 	The Parties agree that this Agreement is in the public interest. The Parties further agree that this Agreement reflects the settlement of all contested issues between them in this proceeding. The Parties understand that this Agreement—including the admissions contained herein—is not binding unless and until accepted by the Commission. If the Commission does not accept this Agreement, including all of its terms and conditions without change, then the Parties shall be free to assert their pre-settlement positions and agree that neither this Agreement nor any statements or admissions contained herein shall be admissible or used for any purpose in this docket or any other proceeding for any purpose.
15 	The Parties agree to cooperate in submitting this Agreement promptly to the Commission for acceptance. The Parties agree to support adoption of this Agreement in proceedings before the Commission. No party to this Agreement or its agents, employees, consultants, or attorneys will engage in advocacy contrary to the Commission’s adoption of this Agreement.
16 	The Parties agree (1) to provide each other the right to review in advance of publication any and all announcements or news releases that the other party intends to make about the Agreement (with the right of review to include a reasonable opportunity to request changes to the text of such announcements) and (2) to include in any news release or announcement a statement that the Staff’s recommendation to approve the settlement is not binding on the Commission itself.
17 	Nothing in this Agreement shall limit or bar any other entity from pursuing legal remedies against Kush Tourism or Kush Tourism’s ability to assert defenses to such claims.
18 	The Parties have entered into this Agreement to avoid further expense, inconvenience, uncertainty, and delay. The Parties recognize that this Agreement represents a compromise of the Parties’ positions. As such, conduct, statements, and documents disclosed during negotiations of this Agreement shall not be admissible as evidence in this or any other proceeding, except in any proceeding to enforce the terms of this Agreement or any Commission order fully adopting those terms. This Agreement shall not be construed against either party because it was a drafter of this Agreement.
19 	By executing this Agreement, no Party shall be deemed to have approved, admitted, or consented to the facts, principles, methods, or theories employed in arriving at the terms of this Agreement, nor shall any Party be deemed to have agreed that any provision of this Agreement is appropriate for resolving issues in any other proceeding, except to the extent expressly set forth in the Agreement.
20 	The Parties have negotiated this Agreement as an integrated document to be effective upon execution. This Agreement supersedes all prior oral and written agreements on issues addressed herein. Accordingly, the Parties recommend that the Commission adopt this Agreement in its entirety.
21 	The Parties may execute this Agreement in counterparts and as executed shall constitute one agreement. A signed signature page sent by facsimile or email is as effective as an original document.
22 	The Parties shall take all actions necessary as appropriate to carry out this Agreement.
23 	In the event that the Commission rejects all or any portion of this Agreement, or accepts the settlement upon conditions not proposed in this Agreement, each party reserves the right to withdraw from this Agreement by written notice to the other party and the Commission. Written notice must be served within 10 business days of the Order rejecting part or all of this Agreement or imposing conditions not proposed in this Agreement. In such event, neither party will be bound or prejudiced by the terms of this Agreement, and the Parties agree to request the prompt reconvening of a prehearing conference and to cooperate in developing a procedural schedule.

	WASHINGTON UTILITIES AND
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION


	KUSH TOURISM LLC

	ROBERT W. FERGUSON
Attorney General


	




	___________________________________	
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Dated: ___________________, 2016.
	______________________________
CHARLES NOBLES

Chief Operating Officer


Dated: ___________________, 2016.
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